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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

SUITS NOS. C.L. 1769 of 1973 and
C.L. 156 of 1974

BETWEEN Chez Franchot Limited v Plaintiff
AND Halifax Insurance Company

Limited et al Defendants
AND Chez Franchot Limited v. Fletcher

& Company Insurance Brokers Limited

Tried 1976 May 10 - 13
Nov., L - 5
1977 Mar. 14 - 17

Nov. 14 - 18

D. Muirhead, Q.C. & W. K. Chin See for plaintiff

R, N, A. Henriques for Halifax Insurance Company and ten
other named insurance companies

Dr. L. G. Barnett & W. Scholefield for Fletcher & Company.

April 26, 1978

Parnell, J. i

This is a claim under a policy of insurance dated January 11, 1973,
made between the plaintiff and a number of insurance compahies. There are
eleven insurance companies involved with the Halifax Insurance Company leading the
team with 15% of the risk involved.

The defendant Fletcher & Company Insurance Erokers Limited acted as
brokers in effecting the policy of insurance. Under the policy of insurance, the
defendants agreed to insure the plaintiff égainst loss or damage by”fire. on
April 1, 1973, whilst the policy was in force, the stock, matérials, fittings
and equipment on the plaintiff's insured premises at 71, Orange Street, Kingston

were destroyed by fire. 1In May 1973, the plaintiff delivered a claim in respect

of the loss he suffered. The defendants have resisted the claim on the main

Wi
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ground that there was a failure on the part of the plaintiff to disclose certain
material facts in or about the making of the policy of insurance.
In the case against Fletcher and Cbmpany Insurance Brokers Limited
(hereinafter referred to as F&C), the l.laintiff has alleged negligeﬁce and
*breach ;} duty in the filling up of a p?oposal}form dated November 17, 1972

- .
and which forxrmed the basis ofltPe insurance, contract betwceen the plaintiff and

the deféndants.
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The case lasted for 18 days over a pcriod of alout 18 months. And
it was ably conducted and argued by the counsel engaged for the interested
parties. In the mass of material put beforc me and in the volume of some
ingenious arguments which I had the opportunity of listening to with the
<:j‘ exercise of restraint and undexstanding, I find that there are only three
i main questions involved in this matter. And they are as follows:

(o) Vias therezﬁonudisclosure of a material fact to the

defendants in the making of the insurance policy?

(2) Assuming the answer is "yes", did FsC in anyway,

contribute towards the non-disclosure?

3) Wherce a fire insurance is taken out by a limited

liability company consisting of two directors - as is
(\v; the case of the plaintiff -~ is the previous claims history

of each individual director a matcrial factor to be

disclosed or can protection against non~disclosure

be safe~-guarded behind the veil of incorporation?
Questions 1 and 2 above depend on findings of fact. With regard to question 3,
it involves a question of law. It is not out of disrespect, therefore, to the
exertions and industry of counsel if I treat as irreclevant some of the material

and authorities introduced and cited duxing the hearing. I am reminded of the

N
QJ/ words of a famous Lord of Bppeal in Ordinary, Lord Macnaghten said this in
Farquharson Bxos. v. King & Co. ZiQOO—é? A.E.R. Rep. 120 at 124
"But the case is peculiar in one point of
view. I cannot remember any case in which
the wealth of learning and argument was so
far beyond the value of the poor and common-
place material on which it has becn expended.”
Before I qxamine certain areas in the case which I regard as relevant,
%I shall cite condition No. 1 of the Policy of Insurance under which the claim
€
(1m . is founded.

"If there be any material misdescription of any

of the property herchby insured, or of any

building or place in which such property is

contained, oi any misrepresentacion as to any

fact material to be known for estimating the

risk, ox.any omission to state such fact, the

Insurers shall not be liable upon the Policy

so far as it relates to propcrty affected by

7% any such misdescription, misrepresentation or
omission. "
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The condition abovementioned is founded on the well known principle that good
faith is the basis of a contract of insurance and that an assured is under a
duty to make full disclosure of all material facts which would influence the
judgment of a prudent insurer. The insurer must be put in a position to decide
whether he will accept tﬂe risk and if he so decides, at what promium the risk
will be taken. &And if the insurcr is not put in a position freely to decide
on the points outlined, he is frec to reject any claim based under a policy
issued to an assured who is guilty of non-disclosurc at the time the contract
was made or renewed.

A linmited liability company is foxrmed

The plaintiff company was incorporated on HMarch 13, 1971 with
registered office at 71, Orange Strect, Kingston. It is a privaﬁe company
carrying on a dry goods business with two directors, IMr. Anis Hadecd and Mr.
Franchot Seaga. Both gentiemen are brothers-in-law. They have long experience
in the operation of a commercial business. In the case of Mx. Seaga, he once
operated a shoe factory at 47 Luke Lanc, Kingston and a'garment factory at
Luke Lane and Barry Street. Mr. Hadeed joined his brother-in-law in business
at 71, Orange Street in 1970 mond in March 1971, they formed a company.

Mr., Hadeed has had about 27 years' experience in the dry goods
business. He spent 10 years doing business in Trinidad and has had about 17
years' experience in Jamaica. In answer to a question which the Court asked,

Mr. Hadeed said:

"I was always covercd by fire and burglary
insurance in Jamaica and in Trinidad.®

Mr. Hadeed was educated in Syria. He attended Beirut University but did not
pass any examination. He said that he was ecducated in Arabic. The english
language was not taught but he can expalin himself in english though not very
well. On the sixth day of the trial and during the cross-examination of Dx.
Barnett, Mr. Hadeed was questioned as follows: ~
Q. #n 1971, did you know that an insurance company
in doing business, it is important to know
whether the person to be cdvered is or is not
y experienced in doing the business to be
‘insured?

A, Yes.
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Claims experience of Mr. Seaga and
lir, Hadeed when nersonally treated

s — . et e

Vhile doing bhusiness on his own, lir. Seaga had two claims under
a fire policy. It was nroved that the first claim hie made was in Ipril 1967
in respect of his buciness ot 47, Luke Lane. In cross--examination he
admitted receiving about $4.500 under the claim. The sccond claim was in
respect of a factory fire at ¢, Jeckford Street. A sum of about $16.000
was received by him. With regard to this claim, the adjusters appointed by
the insurance company were Messrs. Graham [iiller and Company cf Jamaica.
There are some businessmen who have good nemorices. From their
memory table they are prepared to cite foots and figures in order to prove a
point. Graham Miller and Company of Jamaica have played a part in the carly
stages of the investigaticn leading towards an adjustment of the claim beforc
the Court.

Hadeced's claim history

In the 17 years that ifr. Hadced has becn in business in Jamaica he
has becn engaged in the following:

(1; He operated a business at 73, Crangc Strcet, Kingston
undcr the name of A & I Hadeed., This started between
1957.-1958.

(2) A branch of A, 8. Hudeced was cstablished at Balaclava in
St. BElirmabeth.

(3) In 1969, hc started a monufacturing business upstairs
71, Orangc Strect under the busincss name of “Premicr
#ashion. ™ A partner in that buginess caused his leaving

well
the operation.  Hc could not get along/with his busincss

associate and he sold out his intcrest. ’

(4) In 1971; he joined Mr. Scaga and Chez Franchot ILitd.

caile into being.

A fire claim in respect of hiz business at Balaclava was scttled
accoxrding to him - in the sum of about $%,000. The original claim was for
$8,00C, Dut there was a claim for a fire damage sustained ot 73, Orange
Street. The risk was shared by ot least tlhirce insurance companies. In

s

respect of this loss, Mr. Hadeed received appreximately 170,000 in 1968.

~
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Chez Franchot Litd. sccclks insurance cover

Halifax Insurance Company is represcnted in Jamaica by Fletchex and
Company Ltd. The lattcr company acts as agent and attorncy for Halifax.
Fletcher and Company (Insurance Brckers) Ltd, is a subsidiary of Flectcher and
Company Ltd. Mr. David Fletcher is a director of both componies. The main
office of both companies is in lMontego Bay and Mr. Fletcher is based there.
A branch office has bcen establichéd in Kingston. The Kingston branch is
operated by Mr. Williom Wanlecs, o dircctor of the brokerage compony. Mr.
James Pawson, is the assistant branch nanager.

Mr, Fletcher and iir. Franchot Seaga arce not strangers. At cne time
lir. Seaga owned a stable ot Caymanas Park Race Track. And Hr. Fletcher was
a breeder of race horses at “Spot Valley Farm® in St. James. Mr. Seaga
used to visit the breeding farm of Mr. Fletcher. He purchased young colte for
his stable. The insurance for the stable and the horses wac placed with the
“Fletcher Company® of which = according to Mr. Seaga «~ lir. Flctcher was the
"boss. "

Chez Franchot Ltd. carried a fire insurance with Central Fire Insurance
Company which was to cexpire scmetime between November 18 and November 20, 1972,
Mr. Scaga has maintained that he and r. Fletcher used to have lunch together
on occasions, This would toke place when Mr. Fletcher was cn a visit to
Kingston. And cn one of thesce dates, he having informed Mr., Fletcher that
Central Fire Insurance Company insured thce company's busincss, he Mr. Seaga
was advised that the insurer was on the verge of bankruptcy. On hearing of this
Mr. Seaga said he was disturbed and he offercd the business of insurance to
Mr. Fletcher.

Bad risk is to he shared

s —— Ramtt—— .

From the outset, Mr. Fletcher told Mr, Seaga that in the insurance ficld
therce was 2 certain area in Xingston which was considered as a “bad risk.”
The area covercd North Strect down Orange Strcet and then to the sea. The line
then extends to Vestern Kingston. &ny insurance risk for the business would
have to sprecad. The temm “spreading® was cxplained by lr. Flcectcher whereupon.
according to Mr. Ccag2 he said this to . Eletcher

"David I have had two claims and Anis had
twoe claimg.®

Mr. Fletcher's reply -~ according to Mr, Scaga -~ was "this did not matter.” And

tea
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when Mr. Seaga was cross-examined by Dr. Barnett on this aspect of his evidence,
he said that he did not know what iir. Fletcher meant when he said that “the two
claims for me and the o for Anis® did not mattcr.

Nc proposal form wag executed by Mr. Seaga on the luncheon date. It
was not Mr., Fletcher who tcok the propcosal forms to the business place of
Franchot Seaga Ltd. fThe examination of the premises at 71, Orange Strecet, the
viewing of the stock and the £illing up of the proposal forms were donc by
either Mr. Pawson ¢¥ lMr. Uanless or by both together. A lot of time and cnexgy
was expended at the trial with regard to what part was played by four men,

Mr. Secaga and Mr. Hadeed for the plaintiff and Mr. Pawson and ilxr. Vanless for
the brokers in the inspection of the stock and premises, and in the questioning
and the supplying of information for the purpose of effecting the fire insurance
for and on bhehalf of the company.

I do not intend to traverse most of this arid dispute nor do I find it
necessary to make any findings on some of the side issucs which were raised.

“that 1s not in dispute may be stated briefly as follows:

{1) Particulars for effecting a proposal werce given on November 17, 197Z.
(2) Mr. Anis Hadeed signed the forxrm on bchalf of the plaintiff.
(3) Mr. Pawson filled up thc foxrm; he did the questioning and

Mr. Hadeed supplied the answers.

(<) The stock was insured for £190,000 while the fixtures and
equipment were insured for $10,000.

(5) With effect from Februaxy 14, 1973 Fhe total sum insured was

increased from $200,000 to $220,000.

hrea of dispute outlined

On the proposal forms, there are two questions which are important.
The answers allegedly given by Mr. Hadeed to these quections oxr alterxnatively
the information which in fact he supplied foxmed the basis of lively cross-
cxamination and the spring board for ingenious legal cbjections and argwaeonts

at the trial. The two questions are as follows:
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(uestions Answers
Tt . PO - S k. . ———— A et
A, “"Has applicant cver sustained "Yes, Adjoining building (old)
an insurance loss? If so, burnt 1869 ~ £24,000%

give particulars,®
(Note: The figure $24,000 was
later amended to read $14,000.
How this came about will be
referred to in due course).
B. "Is there any cother fact, “"Sec details.”
knowledge or circumstonce to
be known for estimating the
risk?"
What is not scriously disputed is that on the 17th November. 1972,
Mr. Pawson was supplicd with infomation to the effect thot Chez Franchot suffercd
damage in early 1971 as a result of smoke from a fire which tock place in an
adjoining building. This "smoke damage™ was put at about two to three thousand
dcllars. When Mr. Pawson tried to spread the risk. he informed the insurers by
letter what brought about the smcke damage claim. The evidence given by Mr.
Pawson how this came about is this. He saild that the answexr first given by
Mr., Hadeed to the sccond question (above mentioned) was "no." However, when
the smcke damage claim was ciplained to him, he concluded that as he did not
have sufficient space on the propcsal form to explain the details, he put on
the form "see details® and gave the details in a letter.
This is the second paragraph of a letter dated November 27, 1972 and
addressed to Phcenix of Jamaica Assurance Ltd. onc of the defendants herein.
"We understand that there was a claim in 1971
(early part) when smcke from a small fire on the
adjacent spare ground penetrated through the reaxr
of the shop which was then open. The rear has
been closed up completely and access can only be
gained frcm the front. We also understend that
the adjacent spare ground was originally £illed
by a building of substandard construction which
was razed some years ago.”
The voluminous details could not be accammodated in the limited space shown
on the forxm. Ixplaining the whole thing in a scparate document was the only
nrudent thing to do. {
The cover note issued to Mr. Seaga is dated 27th ovember, 1972.
Mr. Pawson took the ccver note to 711 Orange Street. And on this occasion
there ' was a discussion between him and Mr. Hadeced concerning the insurance loss
of $24,000 which Mr. Hadeed is sail to have suffered in 1969 and which appears

3
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on the original prcposal foxm. This criginal foxm had been despatched to
Montego Bay but a copy was kept by lMrx. Pawson. The evidence of Mr. Pawson -
which I accept - iz that iix. Hndea cuoted a - figurc which he understood to

mean that Mr. Hadced's claim history in 1969 was not $22. 000 Lut £14,000.

\

Lo o xesult, the figure of 24,000 appecring on the copy of the propoesal fomm
was altered to rcad $1< 000, It was not nccessary to notify the insurance
conpanices of the change since o better clain histoxy war disclosed by the
alteration. I recject the evidence < lix. Hadee® on this agpect ¢l the case

when he said under the cross-examinaticn ¢f Dr. Sarnctt:

"It no stage Jdid I tell Iixr. Pauccen
about o claim for $14,000.°%

The proposal foim with its inicrmation and answerc given to the two
questions above menticoned. shows that in 1969, Mr. Hadced had a claim for fixc
damnge amounting to $24£,000. ind as cxpleined in o letter giving details, thexe
was a smoke damage ¢laim made in the early parxt of 1971 and which was estimated
to be about two teo three thousand dollars and »probably nct exceeding four
thousand dollars. The proposal form was executed by My, Hadeed for the
applicant company on the basis -

“that the declaration shall be the basis
of the insurance policy between the insurers
and the applicant. ®

Since this is the position, then one is compelled to ask at the outset,
what has happencd to a declaration ox disclosure concerning thc‘admission of
both Mr. Scaga and Mr. Hadced that cach while carrying on business con his
own had sustained insurance losses to the extent which I have. already

enunerated?

Mr, Seagn's position examined

I have already menticned that in evidence, :x. Seaga said that when
he discussed the question of fire insurance with ¥Mr. pDavid Fletcher he Seaga
said: | |
* “pavid I have had two claims and Anis o
had two claimcs,®

r
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Mr. Flctcher was emphatic in Jdenying this when he gave evidence in chief.
Under the cross-examination however, of Mr. uirhead, Mr. Fletcher was hesitant
in answering questione and displayed signs of not being too surce when
suggestions wexc put to him. Probably he was either over awed by the grandour -
and sclemnity of the court room - a spectacle not easily dctected in the
busincss world - or he was unable to cope with & careful and well directed
questioning by counscl., I will record what my note shows of part of the
scene:

Q. "pid Mr. Seaga say tc you that he had had two
claims and Anis had had two?

A, No. (in a feeble tone)
G I suggest to you that he Jdid?
A. (After a pausc, no answer given ~ witness neverthcless

looks intently at counsel),

0. Would previous fire claims affect onc's entitlement
to better rates?

A. Yes, Sir, (without hesitation).®
When Mr. Seaga was cross-cxamined by lr. Henriques, he said this:
"Mr. Fletcher never askoed me about the details of
Mr., Hadeed's claims. I did nct give him any details
of my two claime: he did not ask me and he said that
it did not matter. ™
of

Foxr the purposcs/ dealing with the legal aspect of the claim. I will
assume without deciding that Mr. Seaga's evidence on this part of the case is
to be preferred.

A frioendly chat betwecn two friends over a drink or lunch is being
used as a moment of serious contemplation when "facts® were disclosed which
would affect the minds of about eleven insurance companies which were not yet
identified on the day in question. What the details of the previous claims

entailed, were not disclosed to Mr. Fletcher. However clever and transcendental

he may be regarded in the insurance field, he is not a prophet who can reach

g

the inner recesses of the mind of a businessman. Vhat was the information
contended

which it is seriously being/was known Ly lr. Fletchexr about four undetailed

claimg? The answer myuct be none. So that even if Mr. Fletcher is to be

regarded as the agent of cither Fletcher and Company (Insurance Brokers)Ltd.

or the agent oﬁtall the Insurance Companies cn the Jdate when no proposal form
‘ .
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was cxecuted by the plaintiff company - a proposition which I doubt -~ the
assumption which I have made in Favou. of IMr. foaga's ev.dence canmbt ovail
the pladintifE,

In a fire insuronce claia - ag in any other ciaim under a policy of
insurance - the assured may show that the facte not dizsclosed, werxc known and
present to the minds of the insurers when the risk was accepted. Lvery proposal
which is accepted foxme the basis cf & new contract. Tf on insurer once had know-

ledge of certain facts, the assured cannot say that thoge facts should be

]

recmembered by the insurcr if he fails to disclose them at o later date howevexr
long, vhen he seeks a frxesh policy of ingurance. The point is summed up as
follows at paragraph 208, p.1l5 of Halsbury's Laws of Bngland, 3rd Edition,
vol.22;

-~

Yrhe assured cennot cucuzce hio omission to

communicate a mateviel fact on the ground that

it had previcusly come to the inowledge of the
undexrwriter, unlece at the tie when the contract
waos rade the fact was present te the mind of the
undexwriter.”

ool

e

ee of Mr. ladeed

The evi s to the eiffecer that on Novembexr 17, 1972,
Mr. Pawscn ond Mr. Venless visited 7., Orange Strzet. My, Seaga incuired
‘whethexr Mr. Flctcher had inforxined thom of the cenversation which he had with
Mr. Pletcher about the insurance. Their renly was ‘ves.® After a brief

dialogue, Mr., Seago was called away by a customer and so he Mr. Hadeed answered

o

the questions asked by the gentlemen of whanm Mr. Pawson was the chief gquestioner.

Dealing with previous insurance claims, Mr. Hadeod indicated that gquestions
were asked along the followiry lincs:

1) How much stock do you have to insurce?

(2) Have you ever had anv cléim cr fire hefore?

3) Did Chez Fwanchot L£d~ever hecve any claim befoxe?
With regard to question 2 above, Mr. Hadeced said he mentioned receiving $24,000
from Phoenixz Insurance Company and he intended disclosing how much he got from
two cher companics, nonely, Jotor Orners Mvtuel and 2 8. Gamble but he was
discouraged or prevented frow angwering by Mr. Pawson. Jccoxding to him, Mr.
Pawson ingquired whother the clola was by Chez Franchot Ltd. The answer was that

eo /11
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it was Hadecd Ltd.which made the claim whereupon Mr. Pawson used words:

I am nct concerned with Hadeed Ltd. or Anis

Hadeed or Franchot Scaga but with Chez Franchot

Ltd. alone.”

7ith regard to question 3, the answer was "yes™ and he gave particulars

of the “smcke damoge cladim® to which I have referred caxlier in the judgment.
Mr. Hodeed has maintained that the last question on the proposal form was not
asked at all. The question to which reference has already been made is here
repeated s

"Is therc any other fact, knowledge or circumstance
to be known for estimating the risk?"

To the Court, Mr. Hadeed said this:
"I do not know what the last question means.”

Q. "Can you think of anything as a busincssman what
it could be referring to?

A, I do not know the mecaning of it.”™
It is accepted that Mr., Pawson £illed up the proposal form. However, Mr. Hadeed
said that Pawson did nct tell him what he had written. This scems to follow
from his evidence: that whercas the words “sce details® appecar on the proposal
form as the answer to the last guestion above mentioned and whercas in fact
the details in a letter to some of the insurance companics about *the smoke
damage” are ccrrect, nevertheless no cuestion was asked in the form of the
last question. And cven if the question was asked in that form, it was not
known to what' it could be referring.

In the cross-examination of Dr. Bafhett,wyr. Hadeed said thies:

“I always trust my broker. I always have faith in
my broker., I never question him. I just sign.”

and in chief, he was questioned as follows by Mz. Muirhead:

0. "Did you xend the foxm?
A, No, Sir.
¢
. Did eithexr of-them ask you to rcad the form?
A, No, Sir.
Q. Did cither read the fomm to you?
Al No, Sir.*”

Mr. Hadced carried on a partnerxship business as . S. Hadeed and then
converted the partnership into & limited liability company under the name of

. S. Hadeced Ltd. This was in 1966. He was morried in 1959.
a-on/lz
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Chez Franchot Ltd. was a partnership business when Iix. Hadeed joined the
firm. On the advice cof the firm'‘s accountant, the partnerchip was converted into
a limited liability company. Vhen the “smoke damage claim®™ was made in early
1971, it was made by the partnership of Chez Franchot and not by Chez Franchot
<7 Ltd.

'A\—’ W7ag the claim history of both Scaga and

Haceed in whatever capacity important and
material?

The legal positicn as tc materiality is summed up thus in MacGillivray

on Insurance Law, 2nd Zdition at page 453:

"It is for the Court to rule as a matter of

law whether the fact in question cculd be

material. It is for the jury or for a Judge

sitting as a jury to deteminc as a matter

of fact upon the evidence whethoer the fact

in question was material,”
(\,‘ In considering this question, the Court should not ignore the general practice
of insurers. There are many trades, occupations and enterprises which are
guided by certain practices among their mombers. Any Court which ignores the
views or opinions of a credible and euwpericnced member touching the practice
existing which is rclevant to an issue before it, would be setting a course
for committing an exror in a matter where some enlightenment could be useful.
For example, in a casc where a claim was made under a policy of insurance, it
was contended by the defendant that the assurced had failed to disclose that
~ he was in the habit of taking drugs and that he once suffcered from an overdoge
of vercnal. &t the trial, lcCardie, J. admitted exanination and cross-

-
examination of medical witnesscs dirccted to two questions, namely:
(1) Is it material for an insurance company
to know of a veronal habit or of insomnia trouble

on the part of the proposer?

(2) Is illness following upon the overdose of veronal
a matter of censcquence?

(See Yorke v. Yorkshire Insurance /19167 1 K.B. 662.

<;,‘ ¥hen Mr. Fletcher. a veteran in the insurance business was cross-cxamincd

by Mr. Muirhecad, hc was askced this questiocn:

Je “In an application by a limited liability company
are your agents required to obtain from all the
directors their personal claim's history?

A, The instructions to the agents arc that they should
i cbhtain all material facts nccessary to undexwrite
the risglk.” . -




Mr. Henriques in cross-cxamination put this qguestion to Mr. Fletcher:

0. "If the insured had a provicus less of $168,000
would you considexr this of importaonce to be
known by the insurance company?

A, Yes, Six,”

Mr. Pawson, a qualified insurance cxecutive with 13 ycaxs experience
made the fcllowing points duxing his evidence.

L) He filled up the proposal form after getting answers to

his questions.

(2) He had visited 71, Orange Street in Junc 1971 in connection
with insurance coveragce for Mr. Scaga's livestock.

(3) He visited the said pramiscs cn November 17, 1972 in
connection with the fire insurance and therxe he saw both Mr.
Scaga and Mr. Hadeed.

(4) Hc obtainel information from both gentlemen and in perticulax,
Mr. Scaga told him of $2,000 "smolie damage claim® while
Mr. Hadeed told him of a claim of $24,000 made in 1969 which
was subsegquently corrected to read £14,000.

(5) That on November 27, 1972, he returned to the premises but on
this occasion he took a blank proposal form which Mr. Hadeed
assisted him in completing. O©On this occasion Mr. Seaga was
not at the premiscs. The last question on the proposal form
was explained to HMr. Hadeed. It was madce clear that the
question related to all previous insurance losses incurred
or claims made by both Mr. Seaga and himself.

What I gather from the evidence of Mrx. Pawson is that on his first
visit on Wovemper 17, he got relevant inforxmation from both Mr. Scaga and Mr.
Hadeed and he then returned to his officc. . measure of exploration was then
made with a view to placing 80% of the risk in Jamaica. This was done by his
phoning several insurance compenies in Jawaica. The responsce was favourable and he
fhen phoned Mr. Seaga and told him of the result of his cxplorxation. I gather
further from Mr. Pawson thot having obtained a provisional placing of 80% of
the risk locally therce would have been nc problem in placing the remainder on
the London market. The cover note dated November 27, 1972, was delivered on
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that date but in fact the proposal fomm was not completed and signed until
that day when he wrote letters to some of the local insurance companies
advising them of the true nosition as he undcrstood it.

Mr. Pawson was firmly of the opinicn that if he was informed of all
the admitted claims history of Mr. Scaga and Mr. Hadeed, it would have becn
impossible for him to have placed the risk. =&nd in particular he said this in
relation to Mr. Hadeed's historye

“If T had known that the previous claim was
$24,000, I would have immediately inforxrmed
2ll the insurance companies. If I had been
advised of a previous claim in excaess of
$160,000, I would not have been able to
place the risic,®

Mr. Doncvan DcPass, an insurance coxecutive of 20 years experience is
the managing director of Tropical Insurancce Ltd. His company is the agent

and attorxrney in Jamaica for Insurance Company of Morth America one of the

defendants in this action. iir. DePass was asked this question in cross-

examination:

C. "In considering whether or not you would
accept the risk of 2 small company where
the directors and sharcholdexc arc the
samc and they also manage the business,
is the previoug claims history c¢ff the
directors in an individual capacity
important to you in assisting the risk?

A, Yes, Sir.*®
Mr. DePass sald that if he was awarc of a claim in 1968 totalling
$168,000 by one of the directors, he would not have considered the 10% risk
which his company accepted under the policy.

Another 4insurance executive Mr. Villiam Wanless with 19 years
experience was cucstioned about the practice in his field wherxe the
managing dircector of a small company has a previous claims history when he was
trading on his own. In cross-ciamination, !r. Henrigues put the following
question:

»
Q. "Ae a matter of practice, if you seek to place
insurance on behalf of a small company.consisting
of two sharcholders who arc also the managing woxiing
directors, would their individual previous claims
history be important in Jdetermining whether ox

not you could obtain coverage for the business?

e This information is absolutely cssential, ®
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Summary as to a practice in
cifecting insurancc

For the defcncc, four witnessce have attempted te outline a practice
which obtains in the insurancce business in Jamaica where a small trading company
seeks a fire insurance coverage. 2nd I understand the practice to be this: it is
important for a broker to know the individual insurance claims history of cach
and every worxking director of a small company which is the proposcer for a fire
insurance policy. The information is nccessary so that the insurers may be
informed of the pogition and tc allow them to decide whether they will accept
the risk at all and on what tems if they do. For the plaintiff, no cvidence
was forthcoming to contradict, vary or qualify the cvidence touching the
practicc in question. What was put forward was a legal argument based on the
famous case of Salomon v. Sclomen 218917'A.C. 22 followed with a discussion of

some authorities. I shall rcfer to the submissions hercafter,

Certain devclopments after the fire

Nfter the fire on April 1, 1973, there was a lot of correspondence
which passed between the brokers, the insurance companies, the adjusters and
the assured. The object was to arrive ot an amicable settlement of the claim.
Mr. Wanless played an imporxrtant part in the correspondencc. On July 11, 1973,
he addressed the following letter to Mr. Scagao:

"Dear Mr. Seaga,

Re: Fire loss 3lst March/lst April, 1973

I rcfer to cur televhone conversation and have
pleasure in confirming that following investigations by
the Loss Adjustcrs the Leading Office confirms that your
claim has been accepted under the Policy. A report from
the Loss Adjusters should be in your hands later in the
weck and it is hoped that an interim payment will be paid
shortly pending settlement of final claim details. I
confidently expect the final loss to be well in excess
of $100,000.°7

It was Brutus in Julius Caesar (Act 4, scene 3) who saidl:

"Therc is & tide in the affairs of men, which,
taken at the flood, leads on to fortune.®

oind there was a change in the tide whon Graham Miller and Company of Jamaica
were appointed Attorneys for the Holifax Insurance Company with regard to the

fire claim of the plaintiff. iAs I have already mentioned, the adjusters in one
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of Mr. Scaga's claims history were Graham Miller and Compaony. &And having
Leen brought into the picture, it scems that the momery of the adjusters
was not slippery. On the 7th Scptomber, 1973, they wrote a letter to the
plaintiff on bchalf of Halifa:: Insurance Company. The second and thixd
paragraphs werc in thesc terms:

i As you have nc doubt becn advised by youxr

Brokers, information has recently come to the
noticc of co--insurers which had led them to
seck legal advice as to the validity of the
insurance contract.

In view of this, it does perhaps go without
saying that we must fermally repudiate the information
given to you in the Broker's letter of July 1l, 1973.°

The Brokers werce alvised in writing con fwgust 30, 1973, that a mecting
of the co=~-insurers would mect on Scptember 5, 1973 and among the matters to
be discussed would be:

"to decide whether there had been, as it appearcd
to us, a material non-~disclosurc when the pro-
posal foxrm was completed,”
Mr. Wanless, having been advised of this stand, summoned a mecting
which'was attended by Mr. Scaga and his soliciteor. I[ixr. Hadeed was also
contacted. The object of all this was to allow both Mr. Seaga and Mr, Hadeed
to make a clean breast of all past insurance claims by each of them. The case
for the assured was put with emphasis in a letter to the co-insurers, The
letter ics dated Sentember 3, and was written by Mr. Vanless. Three points in
the letter struck me., They are as follows:
1) Mxr. Seaga appeared to have adopted a stance te the
cffect that Mr. David Fletcher knew about his (Seaga’'s)
4 previous recoxrd; and

(2) That the “"fires® on which the past claims were made had
nc relevance to the present claim.

(3) There is no cvidence that the 3160,000 fire claim cf
Mr. Hadeed was divulged and not one iota cf any suggestion
that a full discloscure of previous claims would have becon
made when the proposal form was exccuted but for the action
of Mr. Pawson who cither advised against it or preventod
Mr. Hadeed from detailing them. Vhen the attorney of the
plaintiff came inte the arxena, he wrote letters to the Brokers

.

an” tc the afjusters. Here ogain. I can £ind no suggestion or
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any romotc hint tﬁat in the suéplyinq of information
foxr the proposil. thé following in fact tool placce;
‘amely: gy
(2) Relevont doetails conccexning provious claims wer
given or cffexed which the brokers refused to
ncte or advisced against their disclosurxc.
{h) The dircetors of the company werce misled or
wrongly a~dvined by the agent of the bxokers in
cxr abowt tho camélctibn cf the proposal form.

I am, therefore, asked to conclude that o practice which I find is

ohscyved in Jamaica by insurancce brokers and by insurance companics was totally
ignored on the occasion when the propegsal form in this case was exceeunted. On
the oral and documentary cvidence, I find without any hesitation that with regaxd
to provicus claims the only disclosures madc to the bxokors when thelr represen-
tatives fi1led un the proposal foxm are those shown on the foxm and that at no
time Jid Mr. Hadeed disclose or attempt to Jisclose, any other provious claim
by himself.
| I shall now turn to an aspect of the plaintiff's case which Me.
Muirhead urgecd with a certoin amount of amicbility and cloguence. The argument
can be reduced to the following points:
) Full dicclosurce would have been madc of all previous
claims cf the dirvectors in their personal capacity but
for the negligent advicc of the Lroker's representative
that what was neoccssary was tho history of Chuz Fronchot Ltd.
as an entity;
- {2) Gven if full disclosurce of all the nrevious clains of ecach
individual Jdirector waé not made, this was not in law
neccssary beeansoe the real applicant was an incorporatod
parson which 1s soparate arM apnyt from ho porsong conprising
it,

v 7ith regard to (1), I have rojected it. This is

~

a question of fact. In
the case of {2), if this proposition ig cound it means thoat if A and E have

been rofusced insurance coverage oo merchants and if ooch has had about ten

veeo /LG
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previous claims under a firc policy, all thesc facts may be suppressed in an
application foxr insurance cnce théy form themsclves into a private company with
cach as a director. Such a situation is so startling and is so pregnant with
mischief that onc is bound to cxamine the authoritics cited with a view to
ascertaining whether common sens. has boen allowed to run wild in this area
cf the law.

Mr. Muirhead referred to Davics v. Hational Fire and Marince Ins.
Zis9£7h.c. 185; 65 L.T. 560 (P.C.). 1In that casc therc was a claim under
two policies, one cf fire insurancc ond another of marine insurancce, The
action was brought by two gentlemen Davies and Phillips who carried on
business at Sydney in the namc of lMessrs. Charles Davies & Co. The written
proposal for the fire policy was signed by the plaintiff bavics, with the
namc of the firm Charles Davies & Co. Two questions on the forms were as
follows:

(1) "Has risk been declined by any other office?”

{2) "Has proponent cver becn a claimant on a fire insurance
company, if so, state when and namc of office?”

Te each of these, answer "no” was written. The proposai foxrm was written un by
an insurance agent who got the information and particulars from Davies. The
insurance ccmpany resistcd a claim unler the policy on the ground that the
proposal contained two untruc statoments. ifnd in particular, f€he insurance
company relied on claims made by Mr. Phillips against other companies before
the partnershin of Charles Davics and Ceo. was formed.

ot the trial before a judge and jury at Sydney, the jury found that

L Davies did not state thce two negatives to the questions aforementioned and

they gave a verdict for the plaintiff. On a motiun for a new trial, the
court suctained the judgment on thd'footing that the answers were those of
Davies. A detailed exaomination cf the history of the claim is then made.

The couxrt took the view that the proponcnt was in fact Charles Davies and Co.
e A
+ and that the claims made by Phillips, when not a member of that fixm, were not

k

v .
coverced by the question and therefore, .the 'answer was not untrue,

The case cf Davies v, Naticnal Firc and HMarine Insurance may H¢

 distinguished from the one before me as follows:
X
() . Therc were special facts in the case and the jury at first

gave a specific finding in favour of the plaintiff with
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(L) The two main questions under review in this casc arc

differently worded from those in the case of Davies.
(c) The asscrtor Hadeed oppreciated the importance of his
divulging his own personal previous claims by quoting
(i: a global figure which was altered. However, what was
stated was nct all.
() The last cuegtion on the proposal form is so framed and is
] so wide that it has & gweening movement of all other claims
E or other material matter nct previcusly divulged. In the
casc cf Davies there wac no such sweeping-up clause in the

proposal foxma to apprehend the prior claim of Mr. Phillips.

In Glicksman v. Lancashire & General Ass. Company /1925/ 2 K.B. 593;
<\, /1926/ &1l E.R. Rep. 161, an insurance company issued a pelicy of insurance against
g burglary to the appellant and onc R. The appellant and k werc partners in a
tailoring business, During the currency of the policy, the partnership was
dissolved and R went to Imerica. The policy continued to run for the scle
benefit of the appellant. I burglary took place and a claim was made. The
proposal form contained this question; namely:

"Has any ccmpany declined to accept, or refused
. to renew, your Hurglary insurancce, ox increased
o your premium, or required special terms or
(\ additional precautions to be taken?®

To the above question, the appellant and R replied jointly as follows:

¥Yorkshire accepted, but proposers refused on
account c¢f firc propcsal.”

When the appellant was trading on his owh, he was refused a burglary oo
insurance by the Sun Insurance Company. Aricing out of the burglary, the
appellant made a claim which the incurance company reifuscl to pay on the ground
of misrepresentation in the proposal form. When the matter was referxed to
(\‘ < arbitration, the axbitrator Jecided in favour of the insurance company but the
award was reversed by Rocﬁc, Jd. op'the greund that there was no proof of any

Y

concealment inasmuch as the answer was made in the plural. This decision was
»

reversoq by a strong Court of ippecal and affirmed by a unanimous Housc of Lords.
The case turned on a fair construction to Dbe put on the guesticon asked in the

pronosal form. Zut one Liow Lord (Loxd Atkinson) lamented that the cuesticn

~ veess,/20.
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was not put “in clear andjunambiguous language.” Sec /19267 All E.R. Rep.l6l
at 163. The learned Law Loxd waé‘of the view that if the question was put:

“id you two or cither of vou make an

application to the Sun Insurance Co. for

a policy against burglary?©
the whole case and all the expensc would have been prevented, Mr. durihcad has
joined in the bewailing and producced during the hearing a proposal form of a
local insurance company in which the view of Loxd Atkincon is demenstrated in
one of the questions askcd.

Owing to the industry cof IMr. Henriques, two cascs were brought to my
attention which are relevant tc the point raised by Mr. Marihead. In Arthrude
Press Ltd., v, Zagle Star and British Dominions Insurancce Company 2192§?3
19 Lloyd's 373 (C.&.), onc of thc arguments propounded on behalf of the
appellants has the same ringing sound as the cne I have hcard in support of
the claim. The proposition in the Arthrude Presgs Casc may be put as follows:

"If a company makes o proposal by onc of its
directors, the questionc put to the company
did not relate to the conduct of the directors
in their privatc capacity.®

But this argument was rejected on the facts. Here again, the question
whether a true or untrue answer was given to a particular inquiry. depends on
the naturxe of what is required and the form in which the question is put.

In Maxch Cebaret Clul and Cavino Ltd. v. Londen Assurance, /_f97§__7
Vol. I Lloyd's Reporis, 169, the plaintiffs were a private liability company
in which S and his wife were the scle directors. The company was insured
against loss or Camage by fire. After the policy was icsucd, § was convicted
of handling stolen goods. When the policy wage renewed, S failed to disclose his
conviction. The policy fell due for renewal on April 20. 1970. On June 14,
1969, S was arrcected for handling stolen goods and cn November 28, 1969, he
was comnitted for trial. On Junc 22, 1970, he was convicted at the Centxral

the
Criminal Court. The firc which caused /damage and loss occurred on November 21,

1970, almost five months after the convigfion of 8. & claim under the fire
policy was resisted on the ground of non-disclosure cof a material circumstance,
» .

that ii, the conviction of T, a dirccter c¢f the company. In a very careful
and detailed judgment, May, J. rejected the claim end referred to certain

\
principles which guide a Court in hearing a clcim under a fire policy. Pages
175-176 of thc weport contain a ¢gold mine of goold sense and clear guidelines.

Rt
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Let me outline in my own words, what I understand the case to bc saying:

(1) Bvery circumstance is material which would influencce the
judgment of a prudent insurecr in fixing the pramium, or
detemining whether he will take the rigk.

(2) It is & question of fact, whether if the matters concealed
or misrepresented had been disclosed, they would, on a fair
consideration of the evidence have influenced a reasonable
insurcr to decline the risk or to have stipulated for a higher
premiun.

(3) Therc is a presumption that mattcrs dealt with in a proposal
form are material but there is no corregponding presumption
that matters not so dealt with are not material. To put it
another way, whercas, the proposal foxm generally shows the
questions asked and answers given, it doez not follow that
other questions which are material for the insurer were not
asked and wexc not answered,

(£) The moral intecrity of the proposex or his moral hazard is a
matter which is always considercd by an insurance company.
And since an incorporated entity neither has o body to be
kicked nor a soul to be dealt with hereafter. the moral
integrity of thosc in the top management is a material

circumstance which should not be suppresscd.

Role played by the brokerc - agents of wvhom?

Mr. iuirhead has urged with vigour that thé brokers (Fletcher & Company
Insurance Brokers Ltd.) were acting as agents oi the insurance compenies or
alternatively they were acting for the insurers and the applicants. He argued
that if the Brokers were the agents of thce ingurcrs and werce aware of the existence
of claims whkich Mr. Hadced was not allowed teo disclosc oxr in the case of Mr. Scaga,
which were known to lr., Diavid Fletcher, then the insurers are estopped from
seeking to rely on non-disclosure. Alternatively, they would bc deemed to have
waived the entitlement to the information sought. This argument has courage on
its side but has no merit to supoort it.

lir. Fletcher in cross-exzamination said thaot lir. Pawson went to the

-

apnlicant as a broker hut he acted as the agent foxr Chez Franchot Ltd. In a
recent case, Megaw;‘;J'?;;5'-'ét‘ét*ea'--"th-e iegal position-as follows :

/30
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"Counsel for the defondants conceded that, in
all matters relating to the placing of the insurance,
the insurance brcoker is the agent of the assured,
and of the assured only. I do not think that this
proposition of law has ever becn doubted amcngst
insurance brokers or insurers.” _ -
Sec Anglo African Merchants v. Bayley, /1969/
2 W.L.R, 686 at ». 694 E&.

The reason why the broker cannot be regarded as the agent of ioth
the proposer and the insurer is stated clearly by Scrutton. L.J. a great
master cf commercial law and a foxmer professor of law in that subject at
Iondon University:

“No agent who has accepted an employment fron

one principal can in law accept an cngagcment

inconsistent with his duty to the first

principal.........unlcss he nakes the fullest

disclosure to cach principal of his interest,

and obtains the consent ¢f cach principal to

the deuble cmployment.® =

Sce Fullweod v. Hurley /1928/ 1 X.B. 498 at 502.
A summary of the true position is put in these woxds in Halsbury's Laws of
England, 3rd edition, vol. 22, p. 201 at para. 382:

"If a person wishing to obtain insurance of a

ncn-marine character employs an insurance Lroker,

as distinct from going direct to the insurcrs ox

their agents,; the ordinary law of agency governs

the responsibility of the proposcr for the acts

and omissions of the broker.”

When one looks at the picture one finds that it is difficult to follow
the logic of the argument that a man whe fills up a proposal form on bechalf of
a proposer for submission to an insurance ccmpany is by that fact alone, an
agent of the insurance company. When the propesal reaches the insurer, therc
is no duty to accept it. It may be rejected summarily. But a principal does
not reject the act of his agent unless it is manifestly foreign to the scope of
his employment or is contrary to the relationship of principal and agent.

The result, thercfore, rust e that the man whe assists the proposcr in filling
up the proposal form for the purpcse of submission +to an insurer is the
agent of the propeser and of no other person. That part of the case of the
plaintiff which is basced on the propesition that the brokers in this case
acted as agents of the insurance company must bhe rejected.
)
In concluding this judgment I must refer to a part of the evidence of

Mr. Seaga. He was under the cross-examination of ir. Henriques:

o /23,
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“fthen Chez Franchot Litd. had its fixe in
April, 1973, there werc about 30-32 fires

teking nlace in that area within a period

cf about two weeks... . .....the fires were

all over the place in Kingston. It was a

case of buwning and louting.”
Insurance men are men of business. There are many skilled entrepreneurs among
them. They follow events which tend to affect their business. No one would
be surprised if several of thesc men kept a chart in their offices to indicate
the movement of f{ires and their consecuences as indicated by iir. Seaga. Eefore
the momentum of 30-32 fires monthly was reached, therc would have been signs
which the insurance field follcwed that a particular part in the corporate area
was sensitive and susceptible to conflagraticn with disturbing regularity.
Every material circumstance thercfore touching the operation of business in
that area and its immediate environg would be cf concerxn in considering whether
a risk should be accepted and at what price. And in doing this, the veil of
incorporation should be plerced where neccssary so that o bird's eye view may be
afforded to look at the actcrs individually who in turn have taken steps to
cover themselves with the veil.

In my judgment, the nlaintiff has failed in its claim against the
insurance companies and in its action against the brokers. I shall reduce a
long judgment into simple teyms end state my reasons as follows:

(1) The insurers are entitled to repudiate the claim because

they were not infommed of all the claims history of both
Mr. Seaga and Mr. Hadeed at the time of the submission of
the proposal.

(2) VThat was not disclosed is material which could have influenced
a reasonable insurer to decline the risk or to accept it at
his price.

(3) The veil of incorporation camnct ke used as a shicld against
the disclosure of the personal claims of the managing directors
of a small trading company which seelis coverage. 2A company can

. only function through its managemciht. Knowledge of the company

must be equivalent to knowledge of its management personnel,
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(6)

(7)

There must be juzi:i}ijfor the defendants with costs on each of the

consolidated actionS

24.

Where a brokcr completes a proposal foxm, he is acting

as the agent of the proposer. Any act or omissicn cf the
broker in this rcegard, is not the act cr omissicn of the
insurer.

Mr. Pawson who completed the proposal foxm was never given

at any time the particulars which were suppreseed and which

the insureré were entitlced to know.

Mr. David Fletcher was not told the particulars of any pirevious
claim made by either Mr. Seaga or Mr. Hadeed. And even if he
was aware that Mr. Seaga had made claims on his own behalf

in the past - and I find thet he did have knowledge of this -
it was otill the duty of both Mr. Seaga and Mr. Hadeed to
divulge the particulars to the brokers when the coverage was
being sought.

It has not been shown that any represcentative of the brokers
has done anything which has contributed towards the suppression
of the material which should have been divulged, Neither

Mr. Pawson nor Mr. Wanless has failed to record, note or
diﬁ01959q~ any material matter or thing which the proposer
outlined at thc occasion, whatevér the date when the prcposal

form was executed.
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